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International Knitwear Limited

VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

CODE OF CONDUCT

International Knitwear Limited being engaged in the Local and export of garments
and providing dyeing facilities is:

- Committed to provide quality products and services to all its local and
international customers.

- Further committed to comply with all applicable Regulatory and
Customers’ requirements, thereby ensuring achievement of customers’
continuous satisfaction.

- An equal opportunity employer which does not differentiate between its
employees on the basis of cast, creed, sex or religious affiliations.

- Always willing, through a liberal training policy, to educate, train and
greom its employees to enhance their professionalism, commitment and
personal growth leading to achievement of greater goals.

Committed to the well-being of its employees by adopting generous welfare
policies and practices.

In return International Knitwear Limited expects from its employees that:

- As representatives of the Company they must at all times behave
appropriately and strictly follow all rules and regulations of the Company.

- They must devote their time, attention, abilities and energy exclusively
for the performance of their duties and must not engage themselves in
any other occupation, business or employment whatsoever without prior
written consent of the Company.

- They must not disclose any confidential information pertaining to the
business of the Company to any person inside or outside the company.

- They must protect all records, reports and other published or
unpublished documents of the Company and promptly hand over all
these to the Company upon leaving, for whatever reason, the
employment of the Company. They must not also remove any or all of the
said records, reports and documents from the premises of the Company
without appropriate authorization.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 31% Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held on Wednesday, October 27, 2021 at 15:00 p.m at F-2A/L, SIT.E, Karachi through
video link, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and approve the audited financial statements of the
Company together with Directors’ and Auditor’s Reports for the year ended June
30, 2021.

2. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30,
2022.The present Auditors, M/s. RSM Awais Hyder Liaguat Nauman, Chartered
Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re- appointment.

3. Toelect seven (7) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board pursuant to the
provisions of Section 159 of Companies Act, 2017 {The Act) for a term of three (3)
years commencing immediately after the conclusion of the meeting. The names of
retiring Directors are as follows:

1) Mr. Waseem Shafi 5. Mr. Muhammad Sajid Hussain
2) Mr. Naeem Shafi 6. Mr. Mudassir Habib Khan
3) Mr. Javed Khan 7. Ms. Saleha Majid

4) Mr. Muhammad Shafi
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To ratify and approve transactions conducted with Related Parties for the year
ended June 30,2021 by passing the following special resolution with or without
modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the transactions conducted with Related Parties as disclosed in
the note 32 of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 be and
are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.”

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:

1. Totransact such other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission
of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board

G

JAVED KHAN
Company Secretaory

Karachi: October 05, 2021
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NOTES:

NOTES:

COVID-19 CONTINGENCY PLANNING FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING [AGM):

In light of the threat posed by the COVID-19 situation, particularly in the wake of its
subsequent waves, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has
advised companies to modify their usual planning for general meetings in order to
ensure safety and well-being of shareholders and the public at large through Circular
No .4 of 2021 dated February 15, 2021 and Circular No.06 of 2021 dated March 03,
2021,

Accordingly, the Company will be providing the facility to all shareholders to
participate in Annual General Meeting via video link while ensuring compliance with
the quorum requirements.

The shareholders intending to participate in the AGM via video-link are hereby
requested to share the following infarmation with the office of the Company
Secretary at the earliest but not later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM i.e.
before 15:00 p.m. on October 25,2021:

Name of CNIC No. Folio No./CDC | Mobile No.| Email Address
Shareholder Account No.
* Shareholders are requested to provide their relive mobile number and email address
to ensure timely Communication.

Mod Fe Lo
The above mentioned information can be provided through following modes:
1) Mobile/ WhatsApp: 0300-8227586
2) Email: javed@internationalknitwear.com

Video link details and login credentials (ZOOM Application) will be shared with those
shareholders whe have shown their intent to attend the meeting containing all the
particulars as mentioned above on or before October 25, 2021 by 15:00 p.m.

EOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

I A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be
effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company duly stamped
and signed not later than 48 hours before themeeting.

1. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall
authenticate his/her identity by sharing a copy of his/her CNIC or passport
through email (as mentioned in the notes on proxy form) at least 48 hours before
the AGM.

Ill.  In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney
with specimen signature of the nominees shall be shared through email (as
mentioned in the notes on proxy form) (unless it has been provided earlier) at
least 48 hours before the AGM.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

EOR APPOINTING PROXIES:

i In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders and/or the
persons whose securities are in group account and their registration details are
uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above
requirements.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

fii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

iv. In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney
with specimen sighature of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf
of the corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier)
along with proxy form to the Company.

V. Proxies attending meeting on behalf of members are also required to provide
below information for the purpose of attending the meeting through video link.
Video link details and login credentials will be shared with proxy after verification.

Name of Proxy CNIC No. Folio No./CDC Mobile No.| Email
Account No.

Address

In compliance with regulatory direcﬁves issued from rlme to time, members who have
not yet provided their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers and/or
National Tax Numbers (NTN}), as the case may be, are requested to kindly provide
coples of their valid CNIC and/ or NTN certificates at the earliest:
The shareholders who hold Company's shares in physical form are requested to
submit the above infarmation to the Share Registrar of the Company.
= Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System
(CDS) are advised to submit the above information directly to relevant
Participant/CDC Investor Account Service.
DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FOR FILER AND NON-FILER:
The rates of deduction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 from dividend payment, if any, effective July 1, 2021 are as follows:

| 1. | Rate of tax deduction for shareholders appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL)

[ 15% |

| 2. | Rate of tax deduction for shareholders not appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL)

| 30% |

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as appearing in A1L or
not appearing in ATL and tax will be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint
holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in writing as follows, to our Share
Registrar, or if not so notified, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal
number of shares.

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Name &
Name [ Account No.| Shares | " " proportion

Company Folio/CDS Total Shareholding Name & Shareholding
CNIC No. proportion
(No. of Shares) (No. of shares)

The CNIC/NTN number is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as
per the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued and updated by the Federal Board of Revenue
(FBR) in a timely manner.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

EXEMPTION FROM DED ION OF INCOME TAX/ ZAKAT:
Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction
at a reduced rate, are requested to submit a valid tax exemption certificate or necessary
documentary evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat
are also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.
CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:
The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares
will be accepted for registration from October 21, 2021 to October 27, 2021 (both days
inclusive).Transfers received in order at the office of Share Registrar M/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B', 5.M.C.H.5. Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400, Pakistan at the close of business on October 20, 2021 will be treated in
time for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.
CIRCULATION /TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORTS THROUGH ELECTRONIC FORM:
The SECP vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014 has provided an option for
shareholders to receive audited financial statements alongwith notice of Annual
General Meeting electronically through email. Hence, members who are interested in
receiving the annual reports and notice of Annual General Meeting electronically in
future are requested to send their email addresses on the consent form placed on the
Company's website www.internationalknitwear.com to the Company’s Share Registrar. The
Company shall, however additionally provide hard copies of the annual report to such
members, on request, free of cost.
CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY:
In accordance with Section 132{2) of the Companies Act, 2017 if the Company receives
consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a
geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7
days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail
this facility a request is to be submitted to the Company Secretary on given address:
The CompanySecretary,
International KnitwearLimited
F-2A/L, S.I.T.E., Karachi
CHANGE OF ADDRESS:
Members are requested to promptly notify any change of address to the Company's Share
Registrar.
AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY' SWEBSITE;
The audited financial statements of the Companyfor the year ended June 30, 2021 have
been made available on the Company's website www.internationalknitwear.com in
addition to annual and quarterly financial statements for the prior years.
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Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017. it is mandatory for a
listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode
directly in to bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to receive
dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in E-Dividend
Form available on Company's website i.e. www.internationalknitwear.com and send the
duly signed Form alongwith a copy of CNIC to the Share Registrar of the Company, M/s
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B' , S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal. Karachi-74400, Pakistan, in case of physical shares. In case shares are
held in CDC then E-Dividend Form must be submitted directly to shareholder's
broker/participant/CDC account services.

In the absence of bank account details or in case of incomplete details, the Company will
be constrained to withhold the payment of cash dividend of those shareholders who
have not provided the same.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNDELIVERED SHARE CERTIFICATES:

The Company has previously discharged its responsibility under Section 244 of the
Companies Act, 2017 whereby the Company approached the shareholders to claim
their unclaimed dividends and undelivered share certificates in accordance with the
law.

Shareholders, whose dividends still remain unclaimed and/or undelivered share
certificates are available with the Company, are hereby once again requested to
approach the Company to claim their outstanding dividend amount sand/or
undelivered share certificates.

DEPQSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT:

As per Section72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be
required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be
specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding
four years from the commencement of the Act i.e. May 30, 2017. Further, SECP vide its
letter dated March 26, 2021 has advised to comply Section 72 of the Act and encourage
shareholders to convert their shares in book entry form.

In light of above, the shareholders having physical shareholding are requested to open
CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place
their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate them in many ways, including
safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is
not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
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| REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the review report to the shareholders on the Board’s overall
performance andeffectiveness in achieving the Company's objectives of International Knitwear
Limited {the “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Review of Overall Performance and Effectivess of the Board.

The Company follows the best practices relating to corporate governance and complieswith all
the relevant requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 with respect to composition, meetings and
procedures of the Board of Directors(the “Board”) and its Committees.

The Board has carried out its roles and responsibilities diligently and contributed to the
Company’s strategic leadership.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s financial statements periodically along with all
governance matters such as the transparency of disclosures, policies, corporate plans, budgets
and regulatory requirements.

In addition to reviewing strategic and critical business matters, the Board has specifically
assessed the risks posed by COVID-19 pandemic to the Company. Appropriate safeguards have
been taken tominimize the impacts of pandemic on the Company.

Elections of the Board will be held on the date of Annual General Meeting 27, October 2021 to
elect the directors for the next term of three yearsas present Board is going to complete its
tenure.l would also like to take this opportunity to thank our outgoing directors for their
excellent input and support to the Board over the years and to welcome the incoming directors
on the Board for the next tenure.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my special gratitude to all
shareholders for their continued trust and support. | acknowledge with thanks our employees’
dedication and hard work at all levels and look forward to their continued support next year. |
would also like to appreciate the commendable efforts and dedication of our Board Members
and CEQ in providing strategic leadership to the Company.

v
Karachi WASEEM SHAFI
September 30, 2021 Chairman
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The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limitedtakes pleasure in presenting this report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Companyfor the year ended June 30,
2021.

Financial Position at a Glance

2021 2020 Increase/(Decrease)
Rupees Rupees Percentage
Net sales 488,090,150 537,457,423 (9.18%)
Gross profit 40,362,880 51,287,652 {21.30%)
Profit before taxation 6,620,308 16,865,217 (60.74%)
Profit after taxation (50,124) 7,735,146 (100.64%)
Net (loss)/ earnings per share (0.01) 0.80 {100.64%)

Business overview

Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2021are summarized below:

In the year ending June 30, 2021 the Company has achieved Net sales of Rs. 488.09 million as
compared to Rs. 537.45 million. Profit before taxation was 6.62 million as compared to Rs.
16.86 million for the corresponding period last year.

Sales recorded a decrease of Rs.49.36 million in the current year as compared to sales in the
previous year ended 30, June 2020. Gross profit of the Company was Rs.40.36 million in the
current year as compared to gross profit of Rs.51.28 million of the last year.

Sales

First nine months of the current financial year were very tough for the textile sector because
coronavirus outbreak severely affected the world economy. During this time, second and third
wave of the pandemic hit the world, which, once again, led to lockdowns and restrictions all
over the world.
The second major factor to affect the company has been global cotton & yarn increasing prices
and timely availability. The company was also faced with revision in Gas Tariff along with some
supply issues in the winter months. These resulted in increase in cost of production which
adversely effects the profitably of the Company.

Lastly, the retail sector has been affected significantly due to Covid-19 globally. In Pakistan the
year started off with limited operational hours and SOP’s in place that have dented local
business of the Company.

11
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Profit or Loss

The Company has demonstrated steady growth in revenue every year. Improved profitability
and margins since FY 2014 till FY 2020 and faced downturn in the current FY2021.

The decline in profitability ratios in primarily because of lower sales volumes and shrunk gross
margins. Political uncertainty, significant PKR devaluation and hike in borrowing cost hampered
the profit margins in FY2021

Mareaver, effects of global pandemic COVID-19 resulted in further decline in the Company’s
profitability.

Earnings per share

An earnings per share after taxation is Rs. (0.01) as compared to Rs. 0.80 in the last year
earnings for the shareholders.

Other Income

In other income the company realized and unrealized gain of Rs. 1.43 million against loss of
Rs.0.23 million in the corresponding period last year. Dividend income during the year was Rs.
2.86 million against Rs. 1.39million against the corresponding period last year.

During the year under review the company has an Exchange gain of Rs. 0.48against loss of
Rs.1.75 million as compare in the previous year.

Capital Expenditure

The Company during the year made capital investment of Rs.1.72 million for expanding
manufacturing capacity, enhancing productivity and improving plant efficiency.

Dividend

The year under review was tough for liquidity generation from market. In order to conserve
cash flows, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 30, 2021 has
recommended nil dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Communication

The Companies focused on the importance of communication with the shareholders. The
annual, half yearly and quarterly reports are distributed within the time specified in the
Companies Act 2017. The activities of the Company are updated on its website at
www.internationalknitwear.com in a designated section for investors containing relevant
information on timely basis.

Material Changes

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company has
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of the report.
Corporate Environment, Health & Social Responsibility

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment
(HSE} to ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities
where we operate.

Our focus remains on improving all aspects of safety especially with regards to the safe,
production, delivery, storage and handling of the materials. The company is committed to
ensuring environmental preservation and sustainability.

Materiality Approach

Determining materiality levels is subjective and the methodology varies from one organization
to the other. Authorization for transactions and delegation of powers have been clearly difined
and documented through formalized processes in the Company., The Company has an
approved materiality policy, which is reviewed annually to confirm its relevance.

12
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Summary of key operating and financial data of six years at a glance

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the
financial results for the year under review:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
- (alaleg -

ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and

35,983 35,942 32,134 25,728 23,704 26,850
equipment
Intangible assets - - - - - -
Long-term investments 16,979 14,478 17,769 42,052 35,183 75,600
Long-term depasits, 2,052 2,052 2,052 1,500 1,500 2,006
Short-term investments 16,781 8,506 4,177 26,228 74,847 -
Net current assets 71,626 72,410 70,898 65,192 74,741 17,630
Total assets employed 143,421 133,388 127,030 160,700 209,975 122,086
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and

96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 64,500
paid up capital
Reserve and un-

23,133 28,020 28,763 23,362 4,359 17,864
appropriated profit
Gain / (Loss) on
revaluation of a0s (282) (4,003} 14,260 25,701 38,042
investments
Shareholder's equity 120,788 123,788 121,509 134,473 126,810 120,407
Long term and deferred

6,693 12,723 2,048 - - 1,679
liabilities
Total capital employed 127,481 136,511 123,557 134,473 126,810 122,086
Turnover 488,090 537,457 451,098 393,230 169,496 182,672
Profit before tax 6,620 16,865 14,718 17,337 3,799 11,626
{Loss)/ profit after tax (50) 7,735 10,237 13,404 2,152 9,766
{Loss)/earnings per
(0.01) 0.80 1.06 1.39 0.25 1.52

share
Net income % (0.10%) 1.4% 2.3% 3.4% 1.2% 5.3%
Return on capital {0.0435) 5.69% 8.3% 8.3% 1.0% 8.0%
employed
Dividend
Cash (24) % 59 5% 5% 0% 10%
Stock (%) Q% % 0% Q% % 0%

13
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Code of Corporate Governance

The Directors of your Company are aware of their responsibilities under the Listed Companies
(Code of Corparate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Rule book of Pakistan Stock
Exchange. Your Company has taken all necessary steps to ensure good corporate governance
and full compliance of the Code and we canfirm the following:

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes inequity;

» Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

» Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

= Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

» International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed and explained;

= The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

» There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

« Statement of pattern of shareholding has been included as part of this Annual Report; and

» Statement of shares held by associated undertakings and related persons have also been
disclosed separately.

Chairman's Review

The Chairman’s review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the performance and
effectiveness of the Board, performance of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 and
future prospects. The Directors endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review.

Board of Directors and its Committees

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of two executive and five non-executive directors. All the Directors keenly
take interest in the proper stewardship of the Company’s affairs. The non-executive directors
are independent of the management of the Company.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in discharging their responsibilities in
accordance with the Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting framework.

The Committee consists of three members all of whom are non-executive directors. The
Chairperson of the Committee is an independent director.

Chief Executive Officer {CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) attended all the four meetings
held during the year by invitation.

14
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee also assists the Board of Directors in
discharging their responsibilities with regard to devising and periodic reviews of human
resource policies and practices within the Company. It also assists the Board in selection,
evaluation, compensation and succession planning of key management personnel.

The Committee consists of three members all of whom are non-executive directors. The
Chairperson of the Committee is an independent director.

Meeting of the Board and its Commiittees

During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors (BOD), four meetings of Audit Committee
(AC) and one meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) were held.
The attendance of the Directors and the number of their directorship in listed companies,
including International Knitwear Limited, is as follows:

Executive | Committee Attendance
Sr. Name of Directors Directorsh Status Directors | Members
No ip AC [ HRR | BOD | AC HRR
- [ C
1 Mr. Waseem Shafi 1 Re-elected No - - 3/4 - -
w.e.f27-10-
2018
2 Mr. Naeem Shafi 3 Re-elected Yes - - 474 - -
w.e.f 27-10-
2018
2 Mr. laved Khan 1 Re-elected Yes - - 4/4 - -
w.e.f 27-10-
2018
4 | Mr.Muhammad Shafi 1 Re-elected No - N 3/4 - 1/1
w.e.f27-10-
2018
5 [ Mr.Muhammad 1 Re-elected No ~ N 3/4 |a/4a 121
Sajid Hussain w.e.f27-10-
2018
6 | Mr.Mudassir Habib 1 Appointed No < - 4/4 a/4 -
Khan on 27-10-
2018
7 | Ms.Saleha Majid 1 Appointed No N < 4/4 a4 | 1/1
on 27-10-
2018

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises of senior management headed by Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ), who ensures that a proper system is developed and implemented across the
Company that enable swift and appropriate decision-making. It acts in an advisory capacity to
CEO at the operating level, providing recommendations relating to business and other
corporate affairs. It is responsible for reviewing and forwarding long-term plans, capital and
expense budget development and stewardship of business plans. The Committee is organized
on a functional basis and meets monthly to review the performance of each function against
set targets. CEO also ensures that all decisions and directions given by the Board are properly
communicated and implemented.

15
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Evaluation Criteria for the Board

Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the performance of the Board of our Company
is evaluated regularly along the following parameters, both at individual and team levels.

1. Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and philosophical perspectives;

2. Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness and active participation of members;

3. Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the management;

4. Ability to provide guidance and direction to the Company:

5. Ability to identify aspects of the organization’s performance requiring action;

6. Review of succession planning of management;

7. Ability to assess and understand the risk exposures of the Company;

8. Contribution and interest in regard to improving health safety and environment,
employment and other policies and practices in the Company; and

9. Safeguarding the Company against unnecessary litigation and reputational risk.

Performance Evaluation of the Board

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of above-mentioned parameters
for the year was satisfactory. A separate report by the Chairman on BRoard’s overall
performance, as required under section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017 is included in this
Annual Report.

Director’s Remuneration

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in
accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Company does not pay remuneratian to non-executive directors except fee for attending
the meeting.

In order to retain the best talent, the Company’'s remuneration policies are structured in line
with prevailing industry trends and business practices. For information on remuneration of
Directors and CEOQ in 2020-21, please refer notes to the Financial Statements.

CEO Performance Review

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited regularly evaluates thePerformance of
the CEO based on the financial and non-financial Key Performance Indicator (KPIs) presented
by him at the start of the year. The board has reviewed the performance of the CEO for the
latest financial yearand is satisfied with the achievements for the year. The Beoard has full
confidence in his abilities to manage the company in the most professional and competent
manner. He is also responsible for setting the corporate objectives and its alignment with the
KPIs for his management team and regularly updates the Board about thePerformance of the
management team in achieving the desired goals.

Role of Chairman and CEO

Chairman acts as the custodian of the Company on behalf of the Board and stakeholders. He
heads the Board of Directors and is responsible for ensuring the Board’'s effectiveness. The
chairman ensures the development of business and protection of goodwill of the Company. He
also ensuresthe balance of membership of the Board in terms of versatile exposure to various
business operations and achievement of the Company’s vision, mission and its long-term goals.
He acts as a link between the Board and management of the Company and communicates with
the Board on behalf of the management.

The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company’s affairs and execution of
long-term strategy, plans and budgets to increase shareholders’ value CEQ also represents the
Company to shareheolders, government authorities and the public. He is the leader and decision
maker wheo motivates employees, drives change within the Company and takes decisions to
achieve targets.

Vision, Mission and Owverall Corporate Strategy approval by the Board

The board of directors has carefully reviewed and approved the vision, mission, and overall
corporate strategy of your Company and believes that it comprehensively states the ideology
with which International Knitwear Limitedwas incorporated. We ensure that our vision and
mission sets the direction for our overall corporate strategy and our future journey in
everything we do at all levels. The entire organization is connected and driven by this purpose
and it serves as the main decision-making criterion in our day-to-day business.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the Section 227 (2)(f) of the
Companies Act, 2017 as at June 30, 2021 is annexed to this report.

There were 1,281 shareholders on the record af the Company as at 30th June 2021.
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Auditors

The financial statements of the company for the current year 2020-21 were audited by M/s
RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman Chartered Accountants. The auditors will retire at the end of
the Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appaointment.
The Board has recommended the appointment of M/s RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman
Chartered Accountants as auditors for the ensuing year, as recommended by the Audit
Committee, subject to the approval of the members in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.
Directors’ Training Program

Two Directors have attended the Directors Training Program and two have minimum of 14
years of education and 15 years of experience on the Board of listed companies and therefore
are exempt from the Directors Training Program.During the year, no training was carried out,
however the Company has plans to conduct required trainings of director during the next fiscal
year.

Future Outlook

Now vaccination process has started, we hope vaccination of people in USA and Europe will be
completed by the end of this year which will enable millions of Americans and Europeans to
move freely. This is expected to stimulate demand. Despite optimism and positive future
outlook, Textile industry is currently under tremendous pressure because of skyrocketing raw
material cost. We have been facing an unprecedented rise in the price of cottan and synthetic
fiber. Apart from that, adverse exchange rate movement and sharp increase in ocean freight
are going to seriously impact in days to come.

As a result of unprecedented rise in raw material cost, inflow of new orders has taken a direct
hit; therefore, sales order pipeline for upcoming months is shrinking. Buyers in foreign
countries, whose economies have not fully recovered, are unable to pay competitive prices;
therefore, they have started to reduce order quantities.
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International Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

International Knitwear Limited
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

2.

18

The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
Male: 6 (Six)
Female: 1 (One)
The composition of board is as follows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr. Naeem Shafi
Mr. Javed Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Waseem Shafi

Mr. Muhammad Shafi

Mr. Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mr. Mudassir Habib Khan
Independent Director Ms. Saleha Majid

Female Director Ms. Saleha Majid

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The board is doing a reasonable progress to complete record of
particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended
has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board.




International Knitweat Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

10.

11

12

13.

14.

15.

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of

directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Two directors are Certified Director and two directors meet the criteria of exemption and are
accordingly exempted from directors’ training program. Remaining Director will acquire the
required directors’ training certification within the time specified in the Regulations.

The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the regulations. However, the Chief Financial Officer has also been assigned the
responsibilities of the company secretary;

The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant during the year

Chief Financial Officer and Chief executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Saleha Majid {Chairperson)
Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mudassir Habib Khan

HR and Remuneration Committee
Saleha Majid (Chairperson)
Muhammad Shafi

Muhammad Sajid Hussain

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2021

b} HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended lune 30,
2021

The Board has not yet setup an internal audit function as required by regulation 31 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

19. Explanation for hon-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,7,8,27,32,33 and
36 are below.

I. The Company is non-compliant of the number of Independent Directors required under the

regulation 6 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
The requirement to have the representation of number of Independent Directors in the
Company’s board will be complied upon reconstitution of the Board.

1. The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the company secretary.
The Company is struggling for the survival , specially for the last two years due to Covid-19
Pandemic, the cash flow /Financials of the Company does not allow to appoint for separate
function of Chief Financial Officer and company secretary.

1. The Company will setup the Internal Audit Function and will hire head of Internal Audit as
required by the Regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 as soon as the cash flow allows to bear an additional cost.

V. The board has not maintained the complete record of significant policies as required under
the regulations.

A reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek above compliances by the year end of
next accounting year June 30, 2022.

yd

WASEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 30,2021 Chairman
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Intetnational Knitwear Limited

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
International Knitwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2021.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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Intetnational Knitwear Limited

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

S# Paragraph Description
reference
The Company is non-compliant of the number of Independent
19(1) Directors required under the regulation 6 of the Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the company

Il. 10 & 19(l1) secretary.
The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required by

m 15 & 19(1ll) regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance} Regulations, 2019.
The board has not maintained the complete record of significant

V. 5&19{IV) policies as required under the regulations.

Sd/-

Engagement Partner: Adnan Zaman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

Date: September 30, 2021
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International Knitwear Limited
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of InternationalKnitwear Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, thestatement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit and comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants ofPakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Following are the key audit matters:

S. No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in
our audit
1. Revenue Our audit procedures included the
(Refer  note 22to the financial | following:
statements) -Obtained an understanding of the

The Company generates revenue from
sale to export as well as local customers.
We considered revenue recognition as
key audit matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators and because of
the potential risk that revenue may not
be recorded in the appropriate period.

process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating

effectiveness of key internal controls.

-Performed test of details on a
sample basis with underlying
documentations by inspecting and
comparing customer orders, delivery
challans, bill of lading (in case of
export sales), invoices and other
related documents.

-Compared sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the
year end with the sales orders, sales

invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documentation to ensure that

revenue pertains to the appropriate
accounting period.

-Ensured the adequacy of
disclosures in  accordance  with
applicable financial reporting

standards and the Companies Act,
2017.

2. Stock in trade

Due to the significance of
balances and related

audit matter.

(Refer note 9to the financial statements)

inventory

estimations
involved, this is considered as a key

QOur audit procedures included the

following:

-Obtained an understanding of
internal controls aver purchases and
valuation of stock in trade and tested,
on a sample basis, their design,
implementation and aperating
effectiveness.

-Attendedphysical inventory count
performed by the Company.

-Obtained and reviewed the inventory
count report of the management and
assessedils accuracy on a sample
basis.
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-Ensuring that proper provision has
been made for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged inventory or items
selling below cost.

-Performed NRV test to ensure that
the inventory is valued at lower of
cost and NRV.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s reports thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

-Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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-Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

-Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980),
was deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under

section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Adnan
Zaman.

Sd/-

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: September 30, 2021
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30,2021

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

Loan and advances

Long term investments

Current Assets

Stocl in trade

Short term investments

Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances

Other receivables

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital
Revenue Reserves

Unappropriated profit

Capital Reserves
Unrealized {loss) / gain on revaluation of investments - FYTOCI

Non-Current Liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred Liahilities - Deferred Taxation Liability/(Asset)
MTF salary and wages(Covid-19) liabilities

Deferred grant

Current Liabilities

Short term finance under mark-up arrangement

Current maturity of lease liabilities

Current maturity of MTF salary and wages(Covid-19) liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of deferred grant

Contingencies and Commitments

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an Integral port of these financial statements.

o
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
35,983,528 35,942,893
2,052,600 2,052,600
839,500 556,000
16,979,356 14.478.781
55,854,984 53,030,274
123,104 618 160,126,086
16,781,296 8,506,301
47,994,608 29,420,504
10,360,220 4,559,014
26,536,086 33,089,225
22,182,146 22,410,808
577,892 885,322
247,536,866 258,957,261
303,391,850 312,027,536
96,750,000 96,750,000
23,133,365 28,020,988
119,883,365 124,770,988
905,089 (382,490)
120,788,454 123,788,498
1,156,087 1,651,865
5,537,218 10,765,250
- 306,100
6,693,305 12,723,215
59,761,396 67,296,781
477,287 419,987
10,618,722 2,840,567
102,783,569 102,377,977
1,817,933 1,730,629
451,084 849,883
175,910,091 175,515,823
303.391.Si 312)0275&

WASEEM SHAFI
Chairman

NAEEM SHAFI
Chief Executive

JAVED KHAN
Director /CFO
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| STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Net sales
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Administrative and selling expenses
Operating profit

Other income
Unrealized gain/{loss) on revaluation of investments through P&L

Finance cost

Other charges

Profit before taxation
Taxation

{Loss)/Profit after taxation

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integrai part of these financial statements.

g8

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

22 488,090,150 537,457,423
23 (447,727,269) (486,169,771}
40,362,881 51,287,652
24 (22,196,667) (21,458,557}
18,166,214 29,829,095

25 6,130,567 2,179,917
371,395 (589,705}

6,501,963 1,590,212

24,668,177 31,419,307

26 (17,657,396) (13,304,144)
27 (390,472) (1,249,946}
(18,047,868) (14,554,090}

6,620,309 16,865,217

20 (6,670,432) (9,130,071}
{50,123) 7,735,146

29 (0‘01)_ 0.80

— A
S Seman e

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director/ CFO
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|STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
(Loss)/Profit after taxation for the year (50,123) 7,735,146
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or
loss
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investments classified as FVTOCI 1,885,146 {2,040,503)
Reclassification of OCl component on disposal of FVTOCI investment
I . . 2,433 1,421,724
directly into equity
1,887,579 (618,779)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,837,456 7,116,367

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

’ ”QL-«% a;?‘:ﬂ—'* S

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

--Capital Reserve-- --Revenue Reserve--

Issued, Subscribed Unrealized gain /

and Paid up Share  {loss) on revaluation Unappr:;:iated Total
Capital of investments P
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2019 96,750,000 (4,003,372) 28,763,003 121,509,631
Total comprehensive income:
Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2020 - - 7,735,146 7,735,146
Reclassification on disposal of FVTOC directly into equity - 1,421,724 - 1,421,724
Fair value adjustment on investment classified as FVTOCI - {2,040,503) - (2,040,503}
Unrealized less realized and transfer of FVTOCI - 3,639,661 {3,639,661)
Transaction with owners:
5% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2019 - - (4,837,500) (4,837,500}
Balance as at July 01, 2020 96,750,000 (982,490) 28,020,988 123,788,498
Total comprehensive income:
Net {lass)/profit for the year ended June 30, 2021 - - (50,123) (50,123)
Reclassification on disposal of FVTOCI directly into equity - 1,885,146 - 1,885,146
Fair value adjustment on investment classified as FVTOC! - 2,433 - 2,433
Transaction with owners:
5% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2020 - - (4,837,500) (4,837,500}
Balance as at June 30, 2021 96,750,000 905,089 23,133,365 120,788,454

/O %‘l -_;.T" f"‘d’ﬁﬁn--
v [ ST

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director/ CFO
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| STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 6,620,309 16,865,217
Adjustment for non cash items:
Depreciation 4,698,771 4,512,229
(Gain}/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (177,302) (12,698)
Other income (2,280,791} (350,644}
Finance cost 17,657,396 13,304,144

19,898,074 17,453,031
Profit before changes in working capital 26,518,383 34,318,248
Increase in current assets
Stock in trade 37,021,469 (39,726,080)
Trade debts {18,574,104) 25,159,844
Loans and advances (6,084,706} (361,203}
Other receivables 6,553,139 (14,206,484}

18,915,798 (29,133,923)
Increase in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other payables 405,593 17,979,047

405,593 17,979,047

Financial charges paid (16,428,429} (13,304,144)
Taxes paid (9,774,866) (12,664,453)
Cash proceed from Sales tax 13,254,496 -
Cash proceed from Income tax 3,333,051 2,686,109
Net cash used in operating activities 36,224,026 (119,116)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (5,121,104) (8,601,905)
Additons in investment {194,743,553) {133,571,252)
Disposal of investment 174,225,313 132,530,399
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 425,000 160,000
Lease rentals paid (438,378) (378,943)
Net cash used in investing activities (25,652,722) (9,861,702)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds from short term finance under markup arrangement 172,979,654 223,699,024
Repayment of short term finance under markup arrangement (178,374,053) (210,971,770)
Dividend paid (4,750,196) (4,629,997}
Net cash generated from financing activities (10,144,595) 8,097,258
Net {decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents 426,709 (1,883,560)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (5,110,395} (3,226,835)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30 (4,683,687 (5,110,395

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements,

’ ”QL-«% 7:’—“—"%

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

International Knitwear Limited (hereinafter referred as the "Company” or "IKL") is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The geographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company is Plot # F-2A/L, SITE,
Karachi, Pakistan.

We are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven apparel products right from basic to highly fashianed
garments. We are engaged in the export of quality garments. We have established a name of credentials owing to the projected
commitments, working speed and quality practices. Our operating philosophy is to provide buyers with products that meet their
specification, and are reliably delivered at a reasonable price in domestic and international markets.

IMPACT OF COVID - 139 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As in the rest of the world, COVID-19 adversely affected lifestyles and business operations in Pakistan. The Company complied with the SOPs
prescribed by Federal and Provincial Governments. Sales and preduction activities were affected during lockdowns, however, the factory
reopened after necessary permissions to produce orders for exports and local services. The Company remained up to date in all its financial
cammitments. The Management believes that the going concern assumption of the Company remains valid.

The evolution of COVID-19 as well as its impact on the global and the |ocal economy is hard predict at this stage. As of the release date of
these financial statements, there has been no specifically material quantifiable impact of COVID-19 ¢n the Company's financial condition or
results of operations.

The Company availed employee refinance facility for payment of salaries and wages under SBP's infrastructure, Housing & SME Finance
department (IH&SMEFD) Circular No. 6 of 2020 dated April 10, 2020.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of :
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

32 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as stated otherwise in these finzncial
statements.

33 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company’s functional currency. All the financial information
presented in Pakistani Rupee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.
3.4 Critical i il and jud,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires the use of
certain accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are as follows:

Classification of financial instruments; (note 5.3}
Provision for impairment; (note 5.5)
Valuation of work in process; {note 5.10) and

- Provision for obsolete inventory; (note 5.11}

- Taxation; {note 5.14)

- Provision for obsolete inventory; {nate 5.11}

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are belisved to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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4 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 New or A I P ions to Existing 3 pi

There were certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards which became effective for the Company for the current
year. However, these are considered not to be relevant or to have any signifiant impact on the Company’s fiancial reporting and,
therefore, have not been disclosed in these fiancial statements.

4.2 New accounting standards and amendments that are not yet effective
The following amendments to the approved accounting and reporting standards, applicable in Pakistan, would be effective from the
dates mentioned below against the respective standards and interpretation have not been adopted early by the Company:

Effective fram
Standard or Interpretation ax‘il:r::: '::r::rd
after:
1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how te classify debt and other liabilities as January 1, 2022
current or non-current.
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts to clarify extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 lanuary 1, 2023
defers the fied expiry date of the following temporary exempticns fram applying IFRS 9 ta
annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023.
IFRS 10 & Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or  Not yet fialized
IAS 28 Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — {Amendment)
IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment to clarify the prohibition on an entity from deducting from the 01-Jan-22
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profi or loss.
IAS 37 Provisions, c liabilities and conti assets to specify which costs should be 01-lan-22

included in an entity's assessment whether a contract will be loss-making.
The above new amendments to standards and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Company’s
fiancial statements in the period of initial application
In addition to the above new standards and amendments to standard and interpretations, The |ASBE has also issued the revised
Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual 2020 for preparers of fiancial statements who develop accounting
policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts
override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASE in
developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to
assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
In addition to the above new standards and amendments to standard and interpretations, The |ASB has also issued the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual 2020 for preparers of fiancial statements who develap accounting
polic improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the 1ASB in May 2020. Such improvements are
generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020. The Company expects that such improvements to
the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's fiancial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASE which are yet to be notifid by the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan. |ASB effective date

(annual periods

Standard beginning on or
IFRS 1 - First time adoption of International Financizal Reporting Standards 01-Jul-09
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01-Jan-23

The Company expects that the adoption of the above revision, amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the
Company's fiancial statements in the period of initial application.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in
earlier periods presented.

51

5.2

53

Government Grant (IAS 20)

Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grant will be received.

The benefi of a long-term fiance at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Grants related to long-term fiances are recognized in profi or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognizes as fiance cost related to long-term fiances at market rate of interest.

IFRS 16 'Leases’

IFRS 16 has introduced a single, on-balance sheet accounting model for lessees. As a result, the entity, as a lessee has recognized
right-of-use asset representing its rights ta use the underlined assets and lease liabilities representing its obligation to make lease
payments.

The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the madified retrospective approach. Under this approach the comparative information
presented for 2019 has not been restated - i.e. itis presented, as previously reported, under IAS 17 and related interpretations. The
details of the changes in accounting palicies are disclosed below,

A cantract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right ta contral the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The entity recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method
over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis

as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the entity's incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a
change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Company did not have any property leases arrangement therefore, adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 did not have an effect on
the financial statements of the Company except the reclassification of leased assets as Right-of-use assets {refer note 6.3,

Financial Instruments
Initial measurement of financial asset
The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
fair value through other comprehensive incame (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL); and
- measured at amortised cost.
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition.
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5.4

Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in income statement.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

amartised cost method. The amortised cost Is reduced by impairment losses (see {ii) below). Interest /
markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
income statement.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest / markup income calculated
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Income statement,

Equity investments at These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income

FVoc! inincome statement unless the dividend clearly represents 3 recavery of part of the cast of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified
toincome statement,

Deracognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets are derecognised whan the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Campany has transferred
Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised an trade date i.e. date an which the Company becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes long term loans, aceruals, prepayments, advances and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market convention
such as 'T+#2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the assets.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognises |oss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amartised cost.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances which
are measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected
on these balances.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviswed at sach balance shest date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recaverahle amount, being higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets.
An impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the company becomes party te the respective contractual
pravisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the
financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability other than at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these llabilities are measured at amertised cost using effective interest rate method.
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5.8

5.9

5.9.1

5.9.2

5.10

511

38

Off-setting of fil ial assets and fil ial liabiliti

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company intends to either settle on @ net basis, or to realise the assets
and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net
amount is reported in the financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged, from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, to profit and
loss account applying the straight-line method.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses arising on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment are taken to profit and loss account in the year of disposal.
Assets subject to finance lease

Policy applicable before 1 July 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Campany. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases along with corresponding lease liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
costs and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Policy applicable after 1 July 2019

A contract is, or cantains a lease if the contract conveys a right ta contral the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The entity recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method
over the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life . The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis
as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannet be readily determined, the entity's incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a
change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred on
property, plant and equipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property,
plant and equipment as and when the assets start operation.

Stock-in-Trade
(a) Raw, packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cost calculated an a first-in-first-out basis and net realizable
value.
(b) Work in process is valued at material cost plus estimated conversion cost.
{c) Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the
ardinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in order ta make the sale.
(d) Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
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5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18
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Staff Retirement Benefits

The Company eperates an approved defined contributary provident fund scheme for eligible emplayees. Equal contributions are
made to the fund by the Company and the emplayees at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.

Compensated Absences

The Company has a policy to provide for compensated absences for all employees in accordance with the rules of the Company.
Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime, of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Income not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability methad, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpeses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement ef the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the balance sheet date. However due to application of final tax basis of taxation, deferred taxation weuld not arise.
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are directly
attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part of the cost of that particular asset.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Foreign Currencies Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are expressed in rupees at rates of exchange
prevailing on that date. Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

Revenue Recognition

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised goods to
customer. Goods are transferred when the customer obtains their control {i.e. on dispatch of goods to customers). Revenue is
recoghised at transaction price (which excludes estimates of variable consideration).

- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

- Gains / {losses) arising on disposal of investments are recognised on the date when the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised gains [ (losses) arising on revaluation of securities measured at 'fair value are included in profit or loss / other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

- The aforesaid change in accounting policy did not result in any significant change.

Balances from contract with customers.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. The Company recognizes
a contract asset for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays censideration or before payment is due.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade receivables are carried at
original invoice amount less expected credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are
written off when identifed.
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential
decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its
expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received {or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates
of refund liabilities {and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance
facilities availed by the Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flow.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at normal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in
extremely rare cireumstances, where subject ta the approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

Segments Reporting

|dentification of segments

Export division

Local division

Basis far allocation for revenue and expenses:

Revenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable. Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges,
embroidery charges, stitching charges, clearing and forwarding charges, freight octroi and cartrage expenses are allocated on actual
basis. However, depreciation and all other general expenses are allocated on the following basis.

Segment Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation on all assets 48.80% 51.20%

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the periad in which it is declared and other appropriations are recognized in the
period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.
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Cornputers 233,145 3437 158,180 -
Admin and sefing expenses 6129 798,658 15594 - 628,080 1576011 1576011
2,010,348 2,109,088 4113371 - 4119371 1567332 3932829 - 38589
613 The lessehole snd of 1062 acre i ozated at SITE, Karachi o o
Bégvement in czpital wark In progress Rugeas Rupess
pening bakance - -
A Additon during the year 38852 L7070
Liss: Transfer 10 aperating ascets . (1,791,705
63 Right-ofuse assets
Motor Vehisle
Opening balances - -
Tramsferred from leased assels Leeansn
Aaitions during the period -
Transferred from CMP - -
Disposals
Depratiation charge for the period
631 Depraciation eupanse relaing o ight to use 2ssets - Motor Vehicle of s, 573 400/ has been chasged in*Admin and seling evpenses’
7. LONGTERM DEPOSTS
Sequrity deposits - SS6C
Security deposits - against finznce lesse
7.1 Thisincludes the sezurity depasit held by Bank N-Habit Limited against the guarantee S Southern Gas Company insk supply o gas to the Comgany. The guarantee provided by the bank to S560L s of fs

3,000,000, while the bank has held 50% {i.e. Rs. 1,500,000 of this guarantee from the bark account of Intemational Knitwear Limited as security deposit,
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INVESTMENTS

At fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI}
Equity securities - listed

At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity securities - listed

Mutual funds - listed

8.1 FVTOCI- Equity Securities

Number of Shares
2021 2020
590 - The Searle Company Ltd.
21,000 21,000 Engro Fertilizer Limited.
- 50 Engro Corporation Ltd.
35,000 37,300 Pakistan Qilfields Ltd.

- 1,380 Pakistan Petroleum Ltd.

82  FVTPL- Equity securities

Number of Shares
2021 2020
20,410 20,300 The Searle Company Ltd.
2,000 - Attock Petroleum Limited
- 3,000 Oil & Gas Development Company Lid
5,100 1,500 Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.
24,000 - Engro Fertilizer Limited,
10,000 15,900 Pakistan State Oil Co. Ltd.
3,000 Service Global Footwear Limited
6,000 The Hub Power Company Limited
112,000 Jahangir Siddigui And Co. Ltd
5,500 TRG Pakistan Limited

8.2.1 FVTPL- Mutual Funds

Number of Units
2021 2020
9,061 2,590 AKD Islamic Fund
6,960 6,576 UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
81 16,979,356 14,478,781
82 15,624,645 7,412,058
821 1,156,651 1,094,243
—33760632 22985087
143,146 -
1,475,670 1,265,880
- 14,646
15,360,540 13,078,499
119,756
16,979,356 14,478,781
4,951,874 4,044,369
642,060
- 327,000
2,008,686 525,845
1,686,480 -
2,242,500 2,514,744
173,490 -
478,020
2,526,720 -
914,815 -

15,624,645 7,412,058

454,908 431,287
701,743 662,956

1,156,651 1,094,243
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9.1

2021 2020

STOCK IN TRADE Note Rupees Rupees
Raw material 26,057,594 29,613,718
Werk-in-process 76,022,003 46,308,773
Finished goods 9.1 21,025,021 84,203,595

123,104,618 160,126,086
Finished goods
Finished stock - 74,833,942
Finished stock in transit 12,376,546 32,534,308
Scrap / Left aver stack 8,648,475 5,735,345

21,025,021 24,203,595

The finished goods includes left over stock of Rs 8.64 M (2020: 2.67 M) recorded at NRV.
TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD

Foreign - secured, considered gaod ‘ 13,008,465 - |
Gain on translation of export debtors - -
13,008,465 -
Local - unsecured
- Considered good ‘ 34,586,143 " 29,420,504
- Considered doubtful 1,161,162 1,211,162
36,147,305 30,631,666
Less: Provision for had dehts 10.1 {1,161,162) 1,211,162)
10.2 47,994,608 29,420,504
101 of far i of trade debts.
Opening pravision 1,211,162 1,236,162
Provision for the year - -
Reversal of provision (50,000) (25,000}
1,161,162 1, 211,16_2
10.2  Age analysis of trade debts is as follows:
Mot yet due - -
Past due
- 0Oto 3 months 47,994,608 29,420,504
- 3to 6 months - -
- 61012 months - -
- Above 12 menths - -
47,994,608 29,420,504

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loan to employees - Long term portion - unsecured, considered good

Loan ta employees 111
Less: current partion of loan to employess
Shart term Advances - unsecured, considered good

Advance to contractor and supplier 9,622,555 3,325,884
Current portion of advances to employees 737,665 1,136,000
Prepayments

10,360,220
111 The unsecured loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of employment. Laans are recoverable in

menthly installments over a period ranging between 3 to 5 years and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at June
30, 2021 pertains to a period between 1 - 2 years.

Transactions:

Advance to CED
Opening balance -
Paid advance during the year 54,443.00 104,592.00

54,443.00 104,592.00
Refund advance during the vear (54,443.00) {104,592.00)

Advance for miscs neous payments made to CEO during the year which was subsequently received. The closing balance is
Nil as on June 30,2021
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2021 2020
Nate Rupees Rupees
12, OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable 7,046,103 14,131,468
Export rebate receivables 257,054 1,311,664
Research and development receivable 121 18,262,851 17,453,902
Other raceivable 570,078 192,191
124 The Company has recorded the provision only 2% on 100% sales during the current vear.
13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 100,000
With banks in:
- Treasures call accounts (deposit accounts) 13.1 1,831,902 1,822,344
- Current accaunts 45,989 562,37
1,877,881 2,385,322
Security deposit 7.1 11,500,000) (1,500,000)
577,892 885,322
131 Deposit accounts carry profit of 5.5% per annum (2020: 4.5- 6.10% per annum)
14, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
Number of Shares
2
20,000,000 20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Number of Shares
2021 2020
3,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid in cash. 30,000,000 30,000,000
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each Issued as bonus shares 2,250,000 2,250,000
6,450,000 6.450,000 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash 64,500,000 64,500,000
5,675,000 5,675,000 96,750,000 96,750,000
The Company has one dlass of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The holders are entited to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at company. All sahre rank equal with regards to the company's residual assets.
15, LEASE LIABILITIES
Up to ane year 477,387 419,987
Later than one year and not latar than five yaars 1,156,087 1,651,865
1,633,474 2,071,852
June 2021 June 2020
Minimum . Present Value of . Present Value of
Financial Minimum Lease
Lease Minimum Lease Financial Charges Minimum Lease
Charges Payments
Payments Payment Payment
Rupees.
Mot later than one year 582,325 104,938 477,387 643,164 223,177 419,987
Later than ene year but not later
than five years 1,329,951 173,864 1,156,087 1,930,667 276,802 1,651,865
1,912,276 278,802 1,633,474 2,573,831 501,579 2,071,852
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20, 2023 in monthly intallments and is subject to annual KIBOR 12M+2.5%
16. Deferred Liabilities - Deferred Taxation Liability/(Asset}
Deferred tax liability arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreclation

Right to use asset
Unrealized gain on investments

Deferred tax assets arising in respect of:
Provision for doubtful debts

Liability against asset subject ta finance lease
Carry forward turmever tax

Not recorded due to prudence

The above represents finance lease entered into wih Bank Al-Habib for lease of motor vehicle. The liability under the agreement is payable by August

883,961
191,358
65,601

(336,737)
(239,773)
14.223371)

4,805,820
(2,658,960]

3,658,960

During the current year the amount of deferred tax asset estimated by the company Is Rs. 3.658 M the company has recorded deferred tax asset to the extent

of liability charged in the current year and not recorded further deferred tax asset on prudence hasis.

2021 2020
17.  MTF salary and wages{Covid-19) liabilities Note Rupees Rupees
MTF salary and wages{Covid-19) 171 16,607,024 14,761,800
MTF salary and wages(Covid-19)
Up to ane year 10,618,722 2,840,567
Later than cne year and not later then five years 5,537,218 10,765,250
16,155,940 13,605,817
Deferred Grant
Up to ane year 451,084 B49,883
Later than one year and not later then five years - 306,100
451,084 1,155,983

Limit Rs. 22.14 million.

The Finance against wages and salaries to worker and employees for the month of April, May and June 2020 under the SBP refinance scheme ,
Concerns announced vide H&SMEFD Circular NO. & dated 10th April 2020. The Company will pay a quarterly mark up at a discounted rate of 3% per
annum, with eight equal quarterly instalments starting from January 2021 The laan is sacured by way of equitable mortgage over factary property of

the Company.

Secured agalnst hypothecation charge over stock Rs. 100 milliom (2020: Nil), equitable Mortgage Charge of Rs, L84 milllom over Factory at Plat No, B-
2A/L SITE, Karachi, Measuring 1,989 Acres in the name of International Knit Wear, having Market Value of Rs. 183.01 Mn & PSV Rs, 1456.41 Mn,

Valuation Conducted by KBS Assaciates Put, limited and personnal guarantee fram all directors far Rs. 250 million each.

18.0 under mark-up arrangement

Running finance f: 181 5,261,580 5,995,713
Export refinance facility 182 49,500,000 59,000,000
Discount against local LC 183 4,993 816 2,301,062

59,761,396 67,296,781
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181 Limit Rs. 6 million.

Securad against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plot # F-24/L, SITE, Karachi amounting to
Rs.200.32 millian (2020: Rs. 184 million] {with 50% margin), and lisn over expart dacuments and persanal guarantaes of Diractors of the Campany.
The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a {2020: 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a). The facility is renewable and is valid till June 30,
2021,

182 Limit Rs. 59 million {Including 30.0 million one off (2020: 30 million }}
Secured against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plat # F-2A/L, SITE, Karachi amounting to
Rs.200.32 million (2020: Rs. 184 millian) {with 50% margin), and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of directors of the Company.
The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 months' KIBOR + 1.0% p.a {2020: 3 Months KIBOR + 1.0% p.a). The facility is renewable and is valid tll June 30,
2021,

183 Limit Rs. 5 million,

The Finance against invoice of KHAADI (80% of invoice amount) The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a (2020: 2 Months KIBOR +
2.5% p.a). The facility is renewable and is valid till June 30, 2021,

2021 2020

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees Rupees

Creditars 86,132,412 89,802,944
Accrued expenses 9,323,281 5,544,400
Compensated absences payable 1,152,500 1,365,598
Other fund payahla 19.1 383,566 593,546
Workers' profit participation fund 19.2 - 905,758
Workers' welfare fund 2,835,925 2,445,498
Contract liability 1,986,705 1,226,780
Advance from others 340,000 340,000
Others 625,180 153,452

102,783,569 102,377,977

19.1 Other fund payable
Pravident fund 268,892 587,452
EGBI payabla 14,674 6,094

383,566 593,546

19.2  Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance 405,758 792,087
Praovision for the year - 905,758

905,758 1,697,845
Less: Payments made during the year {905,758) {792,087}
TAXATION - 905,758
Advance tax

Less: Provision for tax 28,852,623 31,540,879
Current year (6,514,536) (5,374,574
Prior year 1155,881 {3,755,497)
{6,670,477) {9,130,071)
22,182,146 22,410,808

20.1 1 hip between t: p and profit

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented in these financial statements as the total
incame of the Company attracts minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and its export sales fall under final tax regime.
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Commitments
Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2021 amounted ta Rs. 11,872,715 (2020; Rs. 20,598,241).
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22, NET SALES EXPORT 1L LOCAL 1 TOTAL
11

2021 2020 1 2021 I 2020 2021
Note Rupees

Export 233,671,583 306,674,121 - - 233,671,583 306,674,121

Sales lacal 22.1 - - 249,830,924 214,190,343 249,890,924 214,180,343
Szles discount (2.:241,344) (5,214,886} - - (2,241,344) {5,214,886)
Export rebates 2,640 489 3,503,607 - - 2,640,489 3,503,607
ExportR&D 2,673,432 19,731,612 - - 4,673,432 19,731,612
RED/ Rebate Commissian (544,234) 11,427,374} - - (544,934 (1,427,374)

238,199,226 323,267,080 243,890,924 214,150,343 488,090,150 537,457,423

221 Sales local

Local - - 283,977,809 234,434,349 283,977,809 234,434,349
Others. 2211 - - 8.297,051 16,178,828 8,2 1 16,179,828

- - 292,274,860 250,614,177 52,274,860 250,614,177

Sales tax Local - E 21,001,084 33,727,308 11,001,094 33,727,305,

Sales tex others 1382642 2,696,529 1,382,842 2,696,529

- - 42,383,936 36,423,834 42,383,936 36,423,834
- - 349,890,934 318,150.343 345,550,934 311180343

22.1.1 Others indlude scrap sales amounting to Rs, NIL {2020 Rs. NIL}

CA ]
[ 2021 | 2020 2021 2020 202 [ 2000 |
Rupest
23. COST OF GOODS SOLD
Raw and packing material consumed
Opening stock 17,811,204 22,202,932 11,801,814 4,506,450 29,613,718 26,710,382
Purchases 44,281,827 158,086,495 59,014,541 104,744,870 193,396,468 262,331,464
Closing stock i1z, ) 117,312,90 (13,240,588) 26,057,594 {29,613,71)
95, 162,478,522 57,475,467 196,952,593 259,928,128
Salaries, allowances and benefits 20,728,288 26,551,716 21,745,708 17,592,638 42,473,396 44,144,355
Fravident fund cantribution 763,703 55,468 201,189 633,074 1,564,892 1,588,542
Knitting charges 2,408,562 4,227,359 2,526,734 2,800,364 4,935,346 7,028,323
Dyeing and other charges 27.132,158 50,786,556 28,463,905 33,650,163 55,596,063 84,436,719
Embroidery / Printing charges 9,515,800 6,425,070 9,982,871 4,257,124 19,498,671 10,682,194
Stitching charges 30,510,366 48,174,122 32,007,949 31,018,216 62,518,235 80,003,238
Fuel and power 2715689 2,528,268 2,545,986 1,682,469 5,584,675 422,737
Communication 163,393 7,178 171,413 150,524 338,806 377,702
Postage & telegrams 236330 147,542 98,024 484,260 245,966
Repairs ang maintensnce 1,138,468 1,601,612 1,061,186 2,332,817 2,662,808
Staff welfsre and medical expenses 115,653 4516 52624 236,983 157,140
Mator vehicle and conveyance 952176 1,238,199 A0.408 1,951,089 3,058,605
Insurance 270,278 285,583 283,545 180,149 553,823 477,132
Depracianion 6.1.2 1,249,056 1,417,566 1310365 939,251 2,559,424 2,356,817
Clearing and farwarding 3,488,246 2,058,807 - - 3,488,346 3,058,807
Freight, octrai and cartage 3,750,042 7,554,637 3834108 5,005,553 7,688,150 12,560,190
Export development charges 423,348 954,252 - - 429,948 954,252
Factary compliance expenses 218732 305433 229,469 202374 448,201 507,807
Commission on Sles tax/Income Tax refund 737,586 690,132 773,720 457,268 151137 1,147,400
Travelling expenses - 430,124 - 318,120 788,244
Inspection fees 643,778 - 675,378 - 1,319,156 -
Others 89,655 2,108,956 933,323 1,397,353 1,822,978 3,506,309
108,058,031 155,825,896 109,251,501 103,233,450 217,309,332 263,064,387
Wiork-in-process
Qpening stack 27,253,559 22,362,006 18,455,214 37,022,457 46,308,773 59,404,553
Closing stack 137,100,487) (27,853,554} (38,521,516 118,455,214} 76,022,003) (45,308,773
(9,246,928 15,471,463} (20,466,301) 18,567,243 (29,713,230 13,085,780
Cost of goods manufactured 198,288,229 316,832,956 186,260,465 219,255,339 384,548,695 536,088,254
Finished goads
Opening stack | 50,645,338 28,500,655 || 33557257 5784416 | 84,203,595 34,285,071
Closing stock 120,260,594 150,646,338 (10,764327)| (33,557,257} (21,025,021 (84,203,595
40,385,644 122,145,683} 22,732,920 127,772,841} 63,178,574 {49,918,524)
COST OF GOODS SOLD
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®

ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances nd benefits
Pravident fund contributian
Communication

Postage & telegrams

Staff welfara and medical expenses
Motar vehicle and canveyance
Repair and maintenance

Legal and professional charges
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation

Frinting and stationery
Advertisement and publicity
Fee, subseription and pericdicals
Rent, rate and laxes

Insurance

Others

Auditers’ Remuneration

Annual audit

Half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses

Sales tax on audit and review fee

OTHER INCONE / {LOSS)

Income From Financial Assets

Profit on bank accounts

Dividend income

Exchange gain - net

Grant income.

Gain/{lass) an dispasal of investment - net

Reversal of provision against doubtful dzbts

Gain on translation of foreign currency deblors
Income Fram Non-Financial Assets
gain/(Less) an dispesal of property, plant znd
equipment

Dividend income

FUTOU (shares held at reporting datz)
FYTOCI (shares dispased during the period)
FuTRL

252 ({Loss)/gain on disposal of investment

FVTPL
-Quated securines
-Mutuzl funds

FVTOCH
-Quoted securities

I LocAL 10 TOTAL ]
Note 202 2020 1 2021 T 2020 11 2021 2020
Rupees
7430307 8452402 7,480,269 5,600,394 14,610,596 14,052,796
320,284 408,722 335,005 268823 656,289 £74,505
220347 174,178 331,058 115407 451,305 249,595
4226 6,765 4434 2482 8660 11,247
353,040 212,330 370,368 104,651 723,408 362,991
494,382 €13,219 518,649 406,307 1,013,031 1,019,526
74581 104,024 78252 68,925 152,843 172,949
285,749 223,024 209,774 214,029 585,523 537,053
241 193318 255,176 02,207 168,074 396,125 424,250
612 1,044,052 1,296,426 1,085,298 858,986 2,139,350 2,155,412
51772 162,910 96,277 107,341 188,048 270,851
58,617 78,101 62,544 51,749 122,161 129,850
323988 393,530 339,890 261011 663,878 654,941
55213 36,088 57,934 23812 113,157 60,000
67,409 96,702 0,18 64,073 138,127 160,775
114278 269,752 119,587 152,004 234,165 481,786
10,532 484 12,306,781 11,354,183 8551776 22,196,667 21,458,557
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
187,500 187,500
70,000 70,000
7675 76,875
26,750 26,750
361,125 361,125
EXPORT |l LOCAL 10 TOTAL
2020 2021 2020 2021
Rupess

20845 239,002 84,813 158418 165,658 397,510
1,397.425 838,495 1,466,016 555570 2,863,441 1,304,065

488,103 - - - 485,193 -

599,764 - 629,202 - 1,228,967 -
252 513314 210,504 535,510 135,741 1,051,824 350,644
50,000 25,000 50,000 25,000

105,182 - - 105,182 -
85,517 7638 20,775 5.060 172,302 12,608
3371252 1,296,128 2,855,316 883,769 6,130,567 2,179,917

2,223,000 945,450

50 337,402
562,570 111,213
2,790,020 1,394,065

2,431
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2.

FINANCE COST EXPORT LocAL ToTAL
2021 3020 2021 2020 2021

IABrk-up o0 exaort refinance 1075037 1,826,073 1127808 1209820 2,202,850 3,035,993
Mark-up on running firance 256,978 405,672 268,501 229,086 526,560 25,750
Mark-up on MTF salery and wages (Covid 13) 525,026 19,809 571,570 13,151 1,897,505 33,000
Barlk charges 1,200,270 1,228,503 1,258,288 813,081 2,459,658 2,002,483
Mark-up an llablity against assst susject to Anance
[ 7588 152,194 TeIBE 100,841 154,086 253,035
Excharge (lss)net - 1,759,383 - - - 1,758,383
Brokerage and other charges 25,853 36,370 27422 24,088 52,874 60468
Capitsl Gain Tax (25,6751 21614 (26,935) 20956 (s2,608) 52,610
Other markup - - 10416374 5,241,413 10,416,373 5,241,413
3,533,786 5,550,688 13123611 7,753,456 17.657.396 13304344
OTHER CHARGES
Werlcers' profit partipation fund - 544,791 - 360,567 . 08,758
Viorkers' welfere fund 190,559 207,020 199915 137,168 390,472 344,188
T E— e deai3s __ ssuavs  ipassds
SEGMENT INFORIMATION
A segment Is a distinguishable camponent of the company that Is engaged in bush from which the Comp and incur 1 15 results are regulerly

and assess Tts performance. Further, discrete financial

reviewed by the Company’s Chiel Operating Decision Maker (o make decision about resources to be allecated to the segme
Information is evailable for each segment.

Based an Internzl managament reporting structure and products produced and sold, the Company s organized (nta the follawing two operating sagments

Management monitors the operating resuts of above mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources to be sllocated and of assessing
performance.
Segmant revenus and segment result for the vesr are 25 follows:

EXPORT ToCAL ToTAL
Zoz1 2030 FEETS 7030 Z031 2030
Rupees
et Salas. 236,199,226 323,267,080 249090524 214,190,343 488,050,150 537,457,423
Cost of goods sold 258,673,873)  (294,687,273) (209,053,356] (191,482,498 442,727,269} 1#85,169,771)
Gross profit (474,648] 26,579,807 0,837,528 72,707,845 40,362,850 51,267,652
Administrative and selling expenses (10,832,482} 112,506,781} {11,364,183) (8551,776) 122,196,657) (21,458,557)
Segment results 11307.132) 15,673,027 28,473,396 11,156,068 18,166,213 29,828,085
Other incame / (lass) 3271252 1,206,128 2859315 83,789 6,130,568 2178817
Unrealized gain / {loss) en revaluation of i
et e e oo 181,249 (54,6931 180,146 (235,012 371,395 1589,705)
Fnance cost (3,533,786 (5,550,588 (14,123,5111 (7,753,4561 (37.657,3961 (13,304,244}
Other charass (120,559) (751,811 (129,913) (408,135 (350,472} 11,249,546}
Profit before taxstion from continuing operation 11578,9760 10,311,964 18,199,284 6553,254 6,620,308 16,865,218
Taxation
- Current (2.336,716)] (a‘zaz‘sn)“ 14.177,835]| (2,141,503 | (6,514,551
- Prior (76.074) 12.258,837) (79.807] {1.196,660) (155 881
(2a12.730) 15.431,507) .257.612) (3.638.564] 16,670,432}
Profit after taxation fram continuing operation [13,991,765) 4,520,456 13831842 2,914,861 121 7,735,347
2021 2020
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupees Rupees
Earnings per share - basie and diluted
Profit after taxation (50,1231 7,735,145
Number of ardinary shares 5675000 4675000
Eavnings per share —fooU _______ pi0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.
Cash and bank balances 13 577,892 885,322
funming finance Facility 81 15,261,580} 5.595.719]
_ iaGsmees) (511039
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322,

w

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES
The sggregate amaunt charged n the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits ta the Chief executive, Diractor and Executives of the Campany are as follows

2021 2020
Directors Chief Executive || Evecutives Directors Chief Executive Executives
Upees

Basic salary 1,151,290 3,870,968 - 1,161,290 3870968 -
Alowances 638,710 2129,032 - 638,710 2,129,032 -
Company's contributian ta provident fund 96,774 322,581 - 96,774 322,561 -
Medical expenses 96,774 535,162 - 5,741 98,272 -
Banus 96,174 222,581 - - - -
2,090,322 7,180,324 - 1,982,515 6,120,853 -

Number of person{s] 1 1 0 1 1 [

311 Asum of Rs. 168,000(2020: Rs, 161,000) was paid being fee for attending the Board of Directors' meeting

312 Chief executive and Other Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars. They are 2lso entitled for medical facility to the extent of reimbursement
of actual expenditure and other benefits in accordance with their terms of zmployment.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES.

All transactions involuing related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at commercial terms and conditions. The related parties comprise staff

retirement funds, directars and key personnel. jith re/ated parties , other than thase disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are follows:
2021 2020

Balances: Rupees Rupees

Provident Fund - outstanding balance 368,892 587,452

Advance to (EQ
368,892 587,452

Transactions:
Advance to CEQ
Opening balance

Pad aduance during the year 224 54,443 104,552
54,443 104,551
Refund advance during the year (54,443) (104,582}

Advance for miscellaneous payments made ta CEO during the year which was subszquently received. The closing balance is Nil as an June 30,2021
Contribution to staff retirement benefit plans 2,221,181 2,263,087
Key management personnel's ramuneration and other benefits ] 9,270,646 8,403,368

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The fallowing infarmation |s hased an latest un-audited finandal statements of fund

Size of the fund - tatal assets 10,684,160 9,753,571
Percentage of investment made 4873% 39 65%
Fair value of investments 5,206,527 3,867,016

Cost of abave investments

The breakup of fair value of investment |s: 2021 2020
Percentsge  Percentage

UBL Maney Market Fund 30.99% 39.59% 1,613,272 1,531,102
Bank Al Habib Munafa Fund 38.41% 25.86% 2,000,000 1,000,000
Investment in Shares 30.60% 34.55% 1,593,255 1335914

5,206,527 3,867,016

International Knitwear Limited Staff Provident Fund holds the Investments which are in accordance with the prowisions of section 218 of the Companies Act 2017 and the Rules
farmulated far this purpose.
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FINANGIAL INSTRUIENTS BY CATEGORY

2021
Amount in Rupees

At Amortisad Cost AL FvToc) Gther fnancial
FINANCIAL 25SETS.
13h ant zash squivalent S8 - - -
mestmerts 16,781,296 16.979,356 -
termm depos) 2082800 - - -
Torde et andered good 47201508 - - -
Loans and seuinees 1577155 - - -
Oner receivabies argore : : -
SEaras TeThIIEE FCEIEETN -
FINANCIAL LIABIITIES
Lewse labiliy - - - 1633470
TF clary and wagosiCovid 18] Lo . . 3
Shore vea Fmenee onder mark g arrangemant 59761306 - - -
Crudrars, aczruied S athar PAYGhIEe - - - 202,783,569
tal Fmancial Lisbilites TEREAZD B B
Other francial
At Amortisad Cost TR FvToc) pay
FINANCIAL RSSETS
Cash and cach squivalent sa5.322 - : -
Imestments B 8,506,301 81 -
tong e dep 2.052,500 . - -
e et - mmﬂd good 1220504 - - -
Lot e amenn 1583000 - . .
ESNEN . 5 -
T3 RE06aNT FEX IR B
FHANON LiASuTES
Lease kil - - - 2,071,852
R — 9] lablines 14,764,800 - - -
et sy e ooder A s et 72871 - - -
Crauitors, secrucd and ofher payables. - - - 02,491,645
Total Fnancial Lisbilites Zgina . . 04543500

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGERERT

The Board of Directoss of b evenall far and eversight af Company’s rlsk management framework. The Board b also responsible for developing and moniiaring
the Company's vick management palicies,

The Company's netivitles exnnse It t o va iy tisk, cxedit risk, an mosket risk [ineliding eurrency risk, Incerest rate risk and
e CEatlity of Anancial anarkets 3nd SSEks 1o mnimize patental atusess offacts o the Gonpanys Ansacis| pe farmance

k). Company's overalls risk managament polley focuses on the

Credit pisk
CTEEIT 15K 14DrRSERTS the sk 81 0N DAty T0 & TInancial IRAIUMmEnt Wil Esse & FNencial 1055 T4 18 GTHAT DAFTY by 18174 1 15T 31 OBIIESTON, The Compary's credit ik Is primarly atribUtatle 1o s
crade dokis and balancas at banks. Lacal crodis salas are acseniialb to Fhaas, Roceisabla from eefsort salas aro securest again laiter of cradii. Tha credt risk un faud funds is limitan! bocauss cauies aariics
are barks with reasanably high crecdit ratings.
0 Expouure to cradie ik

The carrying smotmnt of Ainancial sasets represents masimum credit exposure. The maimum sxosure 1o ereelt risk at the date of reporting b a5 follows

2021 2000
Rupess Rupers

Financial assats:

Trate debis 7594608 29,420,504

Leans and advances 11,199,720 5115014

Gther racenatlas 26,535,086 38,083,205

Eank balance: 2,077,892 2,385,302

The trade debits are due fro Toceln i locsl custornars for exort and local sakes espectively. MEOriTy of The 1rade Sebts rorm Toreigh CUSTOMErs a4e secued SgAINSL IETiars of credit. Manugement nisesses

the cradit quality f local and faralgn customers, taking inta account thalr financial positian, past asperience and other factars. Far bank balances, fnancial insitubians with sircag crodit ratngs are sccoto

Credicrisk on bank balances ix limited a: these are placed with banks having good credit ratings. Laans ta employees are secured against their BF balsnees

The Compary shuays messurcs the las allawance for trade debts =t an amaunt equal to IfERME ECL using the simplificd 3ppraach. The cupected ercdit logses on lacal trade debts 2re cammated using 3 prowsion
efault the debter and iysiz of the deblor’s current financial pasibon, sdjustar for factors that are spechc to the deblars, geners! sconomc condstions of the

which the debiors ogerate and an assessment of both the errent as vl as the Treest directin of sanditiens at the reposting date

Market Risk
Masket sisk is the risk that the farr valuz or 25 & result of changes in market interest rotes or the market prices af scurities due o changs in cradit
Tating f 1 st ot th nsirumant, chang i marhat st ants, someutats aciion, oty ane oan of secus et Il I 0 oot

Market of . profit rate risk and other price risk.

M urmenc risk
Curreney ik I he ik tha the fir valie or futre cash lows o a nanclal Insiument Wil uctiats becsise of changes n foreign exchange rtes. Currency sk arses iy rom future commercal
hes that east due to
Financis| . NE (2020 RS, MIL)
Sonsitivity analysis
engthening | wesk ening of Pak Rupse gainst LSS ot June 30, 2021 weuld have (decreased) / dinghy. This anah, bt il sthar variabl

[
Intierist rak risk raprissnts the rick that are fair value or future cach flaws of 2 fnansial inatrument will fluctuata becausa of changes in markat intorwst rates, Tha Company s ne lang rm intarest
bearing finoneial fair value or future of changes in market
Homver, Company o passass short e Interest bearing financial iabllicies which nehudes Rs, 76,365,421 (2030: A 6753 481)
financialinstruments have besn (ndleated In respective nates.

Fair value semsitivity onofysis for fued rote instruments
The Compars; daes nat aceount for any fires rate fmancial assets and libilifies ot fair value thraugh f profit o las. Thesefore, & change in intarest rate at the reporting date would not affect the
Statamant of proRt or loss
Cash flavw sensitivity analysis for variable i insraments
A change of 100 basis ponts in KIBCH / 538 Base Kots, a J Wesraasedl equity snd proft o loxs y Fe. O763million (2020; s, ©.430 m)
This anal that all ether variastes The analysis s same b ear
(] olh-rm:wkk
ik rogresent the risk that the falr valus ar future cash flaws of 2 financial instrument wil lactuate because of changes in markat prices sthar than those arising frem mfarast rate sk or currancy
ik besnes s h b factors specific t finameial instrument or its sz, or factors offecting ll samilor fnancial Instriment traded in the market

ara subjoct o intersst rata risk. Amlieable Interest rate for

.
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343 Uquidity Risk

Linuidity risk s the risk that the Company will ancounter difficulty in meeting ohligations assacizted with financial liabilities. The Company manages liquicity risk by maintaining sufficiant cach and cash

equivalents. The following I I financial assets ci

(i} O balance shest assets and lizbil

2021
Effective rate of interest | Maturity up to one | Maturity efter sub total Maturity uptoone | Maturity after S total Total
% { Range % year one year year ane year
Rupees
Financial assats:
Long term deposits E 3,052 600 2,052,600 2,052,600
Invastments 16,781,296 16579,356 33,760,657 33,760,652
Trade debts 47,334,808 47,994,608 47,994,608
Other receivables - - 6,536,036 26,536,056 26,536,086
Cash and bank balances 5.50% 1,931,902 1,931,902 45989 45,989 1,977,891
1,831,800 1,931,902 51,357,980 19,031,956 110,369,936 112,321,838
Financial liabiliti
Long term lability zgainst 1year KIBOR: 25% 412,387 1,156,087 1633474 - - 1633474
253215 subject to finance
Shart term finance under 3 honths KIBOR +2.5% &
mark-up arrangement SBP rate +1%
59,761,396 59761395 59,761,396
Creitors, accrued and other payables 102,783,569 102,783,569 102,783,569
Unelaimad dividend 1817933 1817933 1,817,533
60,236,783 1,156,087 61354870 104,601,502 104,601,502 65,996,372
306,881 1,156, 968] (13,243,522 18, 956 788,434 53,674,534]

Sensitivity gap

(i} OFf balance sheet liabilities as stated in note 19 amounts to Rs. 20.59 million.
(i) On halance sheet assets and Habilities:

Effectiva rate of interest | Maturity up to one | Maturity after Subtotal Maturityup toone | Maturity siter Subtoml Total
% { Range % vear one year year one year
Rupses
Financial assats:
Long term deposils - 2,052,500 2,052,600 2,052,600
Long term investments - 5,506,301 147781 22,985,082 2,885,002
Trade debts - - - 29,420,504 - 29,420,504 29,420,504
ther racsvables 33,089225 33,080,225 33,089,225
Cash and bank balances ALY 1822584 1,872,944 552,379 562,379 2,385,322
162258 - La20 71.578,409 16531381 85,109,790 59,932,734
Financlal llabilites:
Long term labilityagainst 1 year KIBOR+ 25% 419987 1651865 2071850 - - 2071852
assels sublect Lo finance:
Shost term finance under 3 Months KIBOR $2.5% &
mark-up arrangement SBP rate +1% p— . — . . p—
Cresitors, accrue and other payables 102491 648 102,491,645 102,491,648
Unclelmed dividend 1730629 173062 1730629
2,478,568 1,651,865 94,130,423 104,322,276 04,222,276 183,352,709
Sensitvity gap 655624 1,651,865 307269 32,623,867 16531361 16,112,266 92,419,575

(i} Off balance sheet liabikities as stated in note 19 amounts to Rs. 22.21 million.
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344 Capital Risk Management

The objective of the Company when managing capital, ts shareholders’ equity, is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained development of its businesses.

The capital structure of the Company is equity based. It has financed all its projects and business expansions through eguity financing and never
resorted on debt financing. However, the Company has availed short-term borrowing for working capital purposes only.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2021, the Company has na material level 1, 2 or 3 assets or liabilities except equity instruements disclosed at level 1 of fair value hierarchy.

PRODUCTION CAPACITY 021 2020
Installed capacity (Pcs.) 1,300,000 1,300,000
Actual production (Pes.) 750,692 910,639

Itis difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of
yarn spun, raw material used, etc,

Reasons for shortfall
The short fall in actual praduction during the year when compared with capacity is mainly on account of:
The actual production is planned to meet the internal demand and orders in hand.

The spread of Covid—-19 as a pandemic and consegquently imposition of lock down by Federal and Pravincial Governments of Pakistan has effected the
production and sale valumes of the Company due to closure of plant during the lock down period.
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a1,

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, ta comply with the requirement of Companies Act 2017,
Follawing major reclassification have heen made durig the year:

2020
Description Reclassified from Reclassified to Balance
{Rupees)
Deferred grant Deferred grant 306,100
Current portien of deferred grant Current portion of deferred grant 849,883
MTF salary and wages(Covid-19) liabilities {non Short term finance under mark-up MTF salary and wages{Covid-19) liahilities 10,765,250
current] arrangement {non current)
Current maturity of MTF salary and wages(Covid-13) Current maturity of MTF salary and 2,840,567
liabilities wages{Covid-19) liahilities
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2021 2020
Number of employees as on the date of financial statements: 293 299
Factory employees 153 152
- Other employees 140 147
Average number of emplayees during the year: 284 321
Factory employees 144 174
- Other employees 140 147

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company and autharized for issue on September 30, 2021.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS.

The Board of Direclors in their meeting held on Oclaber D1, 2020 has propased a final cash dividend af Rs. nil per share amounting to Rs. Nil (2020: Rs 0.5
per share amounting to Rs. 4,84 million] for the year ended June 30, 2020. The approval of the shareholders of the Company shall be obtained at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting for the year ended June 30, 2021. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 do not include the effect of
the proposed final cash dividend which will be accounted for in the year ending June 30, 2021,

FIGURES

411 Figures have haen roundad off to the nearest of rupees.

412 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation and comparision. However
na significant reclassification has been made during the year.

) 4%

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

| # Of Shareholders | Shareholdings'Slab | Total Shares Held |
266 1 to 100 7,708
222 101 to 500 58,141
621 501 to 1000 350,953
95 1001 to 5000 223,919
23 5001 to 10000 165,150
9 10001 to 15000 108,735
8 15001 to 20000 137,636
10 20001 to 25000 221,619
1 35001 to 40000 39,468
3 40001 to 45000 131,000
2 45001 to 50000 98,218
1 50001 to 55000 53,750
1 60001 to 65000 63,531
2 70001 to 75000 145,132
1 80001 to 85000 81,400
1 85001 to 90000 87,000
1 100001 to 105000 100,382
1 105001 to 110000 108,849
1 110001 to 115000 113,686
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 135001 to 140000 135,772
1 155001 to 160000 158,500
1 200001 to 205000 204,158
1 205001 to 210000 210,000
1 300001 to 305000 300,466
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 695001 to 700000 696,800
1 830001 to 835000 832,153
1 980001 to 985000 981,934
1 2925001 to 2930000 2,928,143
1281 9,675,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
WASEEM SHAFI 2 43,233 0.45
NAEEM SHAFI 5 844,044 8.72
HUMAIRA SHAFI 3 1,068,742 11.05
JAVED KHAN 2 8,089 0.08
BUSHRA SHAFI 1 3,870 0.04
MUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 16,125 0.17
MOHAMMAD SAJID HUSSAIN 1 1,500 0.02
SALEHA MAJID 1 750 0.01
MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1 1,500 0.02
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - - -
NIT & ICP - - -
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions, 1 67 0.00
Insurance Companies 1 158,500 1.64
Meodarabas and Mutual Funds 2 1,042,153 10.77
General Public
a. Local 1,251 6,438,393 66.55
b. Foreign 3 12,500 0.13
Foreign Companies - - -
Others 6 35,534 0.37
Totals 1,281 9,675,000 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
HUMAIRA SHAFI 1,068,742 11.05
RASHID ABDULLA 2,928,143 30.27
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

S.No. Folio # Name of shareholder Number of shares Per %
1 1 WASEEM SHAFI 39,468 0.41
2 3025 WASEEM SHAFI 3,765 0.04
3 2 NAEEM SHAFI 135,772 1.40
4 520 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,722 0.02
5 3041 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 750 0.01
6 01826-52175 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 9,000 0.09
7 03277-44659 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 696,800 7.20
8 i9 HUMAIRA SHAFI 23,277 0.24
9 2910 HUMAIRA SHAFI 63,531 0.66
10 03277-97487 HUMAIRA SHAFI 981,934 10.15
11 2982 JAVED KHAN 1,500 0.02
12 10629-132285 JAVED KHAN 6,583 0.07
13 20 BUSHRA SHAFI 3,870 0.04
14 2911 MUHAMMAD SHAFI 16,125 0.17
15 2981 MOHAMMAD SAJID HUSSAIN 1,500 0.02
16 3057 SALEHA MAJID 750 0.01
17 3058 MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1,500 0.02
17 1,987,853 20.55
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
1 Nil -
o - -
NIT & ICP
1 Nil -
0 - -
Banks Financial Non Banking Financial Financial
1 03889-28 NATIONAL BAMK OF PAKISTAN 67 0.00
1 67 0.00_
1 02139-29 PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 158,500 1.64
1 158,500 1.64
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
1 02113-21 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 210,000 217
2 03277-1651 FIRST UDL MODARABA 832,153 2.60
2 1,042,153 10,77
General Public Foreign
1 03277108261 MUHAMMAD MUBEEN 1,000 0.01
3 03277-110031  MUHAMMAD NADEEM 1,000 0.01
E) 03277-110098  SOHAIL RAZA 10,500 0.11
3 12,500 0.13
Foreign Companies
1 il
Others 9 = =
1 2076 THE COMPANY SECRETARY 472 0.00
2 02113-3611 First UDL Modaraba Staff Provident Fund 3,750 0.04
3 03277-78335  TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 10,893 0.11
4 03277-82127  TRUSTEE NATICNAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 382 0.00
5 04241-3265 RAD SYSTEMS (PVT ) LTD 19,500 0.20
& 05728-24 STOCK STREET (PRIVATE] LIMITED 537 0.01
& 35,534 0.37
General Public Local 1251 6,438,393 66,55
Total 1231 9,675,000 100.00
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Consent Required

For Annual Reports through e-mail

Dear Shareholder{s)

The securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification (SRO 787(1) 2014) dated 8
September 2014 has allowed the circulation of Company’s annual balance sheet and profit and loss account,
auditor’s report and directors’ report etc. (Audited Annual Financial Statements) to shareholders along with

notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through e-mail.

Therefore, if you wish to receive company’s (Audited Annual Financial Statements) along with notice of
(AGM) via - email, you are requested to provide this letter duly filled and signed to us or our Share Registrar

at their below address:

E— MAIL ADDRESS:

CNIC NUMBER:

FOLIO / CDS ACCOUNT #

M/s €DC Share Registrar Services Limited

Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘8", S.M.C.H.S,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: {92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdesrsl.com/website: www.cdesrsl.com

Yours sincerely
For International Knitwear Limited

JAVED KHAN
Director / CFO

)
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To:
Subject: Bank account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode.
Dear Sir,

1, Mr./Mrs./Ms
$/0,/D/O,W/0

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the
below mentioned bank account.

{i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participants ID A/C Na.

CNIC No. **

Passport No. {in case of foreign Shareholder)***

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

{ii) Shareholder's Bank Detail

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank 's Name

Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Signature of the Shareholder

Notes:

The Shareholders having physical shares have to address the Company Secretary IKL on the address given belaw:

The Company Sacretary

International Knitwear Limited

F2-AJLSITE

Karachi.

and Shareholders having their accounts with CDC Share Registrar Services Limited have to communicate mandate infarmation to relevant Member Stock Exchange.
***Please attach attested phatacapy of the CNIC.

“4please attach artested photocapy of the Passport,
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International Knitwear Limited

FORM OF PROXY
31th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I'We — son/daughter/wife/husband of , Sharcholder of

International Knitwear Limited, holding— ordinary shares hereby appoint

whoismy____ [state relationship {(if any) with the proxy; required by Government

regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husband of . (holding
ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo. ) [required by Government] as my
/ our proxy, to attend and vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 27th, 2021 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2021.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. 1D No. Sub-Account No. Shares held
Signature over
Revenue Stamp
Witness 1 ‘Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No.
Address Address

Notes: 1.  The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the company.

3. Ifaproxyis granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited , the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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International Knitwear Limited
F-2A/L, S.1.TE., Karachi-75730 Paldstan
Phones: 32571463, 32574302-04
Fax: (021) 32564414
Web : www.intemationalknitwear.com



